

## CMC Virtual Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. Thursday, January 18, 2024

CMC Members Present: Linda MacKay, Councillor Iona Stoddart, Tom Robertson, Andrew Giles, John Cascadden and Peter Lund

Others Present: Betsy Chambers, Reg Rankin, Jason Timms, Scott Morash (all with CMC) Andrew Philopoulos (HRM) and Steve Copp (Mirror Nova Scotia)

Special Speaker: Peter Vinall, CEO, accompanied by Kevin Cameron, VP Sales and Government Relations, both of Sustane Technologies Inc.

- 1.0 Moved by Peter Lund, seconded by John Cascadden that the agenda be approved as circulated with the addition of a hyphen inserted between the dates listed in agenda item 7.0. Carried.
- 2. 0 With the permission of the Chair, Reg Rankin, the CMC Liaison Assistant, introduced guest speaker, Peter Vinall, the CEO and Co-founder of Sustaine Technologies Inc. With the assistance of his VP Sales and Government Relations, Mr. Vinall made a presentation on the company's operations and activities. Sustane uses hydrolysis to make clean fuel from waste. The company's process claims to recover up to 90 per cent of material headed to landfills; 20 per cent of the waste is reputed to be plastic, which can be converted into fuels of which three-quarters can be sold a diesel. The process could eliminate methane in landfills. For an average Canadian landfill that would amount to a reduction of two—three tonnes of carbon dioxide per tonne of garbage diverted to a Sustane facility roughly the equivalent of the carbon dioxide output of 50,000 motor vehicles. Sustane has plans to build multiple plants across Canada and North America. It is possible, he said, to recycle garbage at lesser cost than putting it in a landfill. Questions were posed by Peter Lund, and Tom Robertson. The Chair and Mr. Rankin thanked Mr. Vinall for his presentation.
- 3.0 Andrew Giles moved, seconded by Tom Robertson, that the minutes of Oct. 18, 2023 be approved, subject to a change requested by Peter Lund, that a repetition of a name listed in the members present be removed. Motion carried.
- 4.0 Scott Morash, CMC's Environment Consultant, provided an update based on the latest quarterly performance report and his findings on community-related odour complaints. As an aside, he cautioned that there were temperature-limiting uses of the diesel currently produced by Sustane Technology. Turning to the 10 per cent organic waste target, he said Otter Lake landfill would have difficulty reaching it. The August number was "fantastic" he

said; it was a little above seven per cent, but the November figure was near 14 per cent. He blamed the wet weather preceded by a dry period for creating conditions that facilitated the release of odour-causing methane gas from the landfill. Since late October, after more venting and methane collection were instituted at the landfill site, he was unaware of further odour complaints.

John Cascadden asked for all the audits to be posted on the CMC website and the CMC Liaison Assistant agreed to follow through. However Andrew Philopoulos explained the documents would need to be vetted first by HRM for privacy considerations. Councillor Stoddard asked if the CMC also needed HRM's permission to post the audits on CMC's website, but Mr. Philopoulos explained that would not be a problem as long as the reports had been reviewed for privacy concerns. Peter Lund asked if the closed or active cells had caused the odour problem and he was told it was the active cells.

5.0 Andrew Giles, one of the seven CMC members whose presence was required to maintain quorum, indicated that he had to leave shortly to attend other business. This was brought to the attention of the Chair and a motion to deal immediately with the high priority budget item on the agenda was moved by John Cascadden and seconded by Iona Stoddard. Carried.

6.0 Andrew Giles moved and John Cascadden seconded the approval of the proposed budget for 2024-2025 as presented by Reg Rankin. Carried.

John Cascadden moved and Andrew Giles seconded a motion to approve payment for the \$125.00 annual storage fee for archived files. Carried.

7.0 A report from the CMC's Liaison's Assistant proposed greater decision-making efficiency by including the Chair as one of the three members that compose the Communications Committee. John Cascadden pointed out the move would cut the number of CMC members overseeing communications and thereby reduce the CMC's oversight. Peter Lund agreed. In light of the concerns raised, the CMC Liaison Assistant said the current makeup of the communications committee should be unchanged. Tom Robertson objected to the proposed deadlines that would be placed on responses to requests for communications approvals, as outlined in the draft communications committee guidelines. The Liaison Assistant agreed to revise the draft. John Cascadden asked that any new version be circulated among the Communications Committee members for consensus before it is brought forward for decision.

- 8.0 The Liaison Assistant proposed that the Item 6.0 concerning the CMC Technical Advisory Group be deferred in light of the imminent departure of Andrew Giles.
- 9.0 Motion by Andrew Giles to adjourn the meeting and reconvene in camera. The Community Monitoring Committee adjourned.